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Gillett &Johnston

CROYDON, Surrey.
BELLS, CLOCKS, CARILLONS.

St. Peter’s Collegiate Church,

Wolverhampton.
Tenor (33 cwt.) of the New Ring of 12.

WOLPHUN CHAMBERS, WOLVEKHAMFTON,
MBBR8. GILLETT and JOHNSTON, CROYDON. 4th Maroh, 1111.
Bantlemen, . .

Tho re-cast:ng of the pea] of ten bells with the addition of two
lew one* in the tower of St Peter’s Collegiate Church, Wolverhamptoa,
riMitIP/ oarried cut by you has proved most successful, and given
general satisfaction.

| am authorised by the Rector and Wardens to say how pleased
they are with the result. In the opinion of those well qualified to
tadge, we havo now, undoubtedl)ﬁ, one ot the bestgeals in the Kingdom.

Yours faithfully, F T. BECK,
Architect Diocesan Burveyor.

MODERN WORK.

FRIDAY, SEPTEMBER 25th, 1914.

KXfoS~"newipa”nJ.] Price Id-

ASSOCIATION REPORTS.

The position which we have the good fortune to occupy
brings to our hands a larger number of the annual reports
of associations throughout the country than come into
the possession of most people, and we often compare them
with interest, not merely as to the progress they record
but also as to the value of the information they contain.
In this latter respect they vary greatly but it must not be
supposed that where the information is limited, it is
through any lack of interest on the part of those who are
responsible for the compiling of the reports. Associations,
like individuals, have limited means and they have to cut
their coat according to the cloth. Already with many of
them the growing peal records make the printing of the
annual report one of the most formidable items in the-
expenditure, although it is pretty generally agreed that
money is well spent when a good report is the result.

Then, not only is the question of expense one of the
reasons for the marked differences to be found in the
various publications of this kind. There is also the differ-
ence of opinion as to what is necessary and even as to
what is really useful. Naturally, from an editorial point of
view, we look upon that report as best which has the fullest
and most easily accessible information, not only as to the
association as a body, but as to the members and to the
belfries. In some cases we know of the information is
profuse, but it needs much time, often, to find what is
required, whereas its value as a work of reference—and
after all that should be one of the objects of a report—
would be vastly increased by the mere addition, perhaps,
of a liberal index. It would not be altogether well to have
reports too nearly standardised, but it has often occurred
to us that if a model report could be drawn up, with all
the best features of the existing reports incorporated, it
might be of some advantage in improving some of those
publications which do not at present reach that standard
which a little judicious alteration would give them.

This current of thought has arisen by a perusal of the
31st Annual Report of the Archdeaconry of Stafford
Society, which reaches a high degree of excellence in
its careful arrangement, and embodies a feature which
appears, we believe, in only one other association’s re-
port, and which must commend it to those who have
any real interest in the bells themselves, apart from
the purposes which they serve. It is a summarised
history of the bells, as shown by the dates and the
names of the founders, and to the student it conveys a
wealth of information, without adding substantially to the
cost of the productfon. This is a section of the report
which might easily be gradually worked up by those who
have not already adopted the idea, and we should like to
Isee it carried out generally, for then there would be ready at
hand a brief history of all the rings of bells in the country-
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CHARLES CARR,™

SMETHWICK,
BIRMINGHAM

BELLS

FOR CHURCHES,

SINGLY,

OR IN PBALS.

OPINION OF OUR

CHIMES FOR CLOCKS.
MODERN WORK.

Peals Augmented,

Cracked Bells Recast.

FRAMES

In Best Seasoned Oak,

Broomfield Vicarage,
Chelmsford

<Djar Sirs,

I have great pleasure in stating
ihat we are perfectly satisBed with
«&e manner in which you have
carried out the work entrusted to
70U of re-arranging and re-hanging
ifce Broomfield Church Bells.

We consider that the work re-
«flicts great credit upon your firm,
aad believe that your system of
hinging the bells reduces the vibra-
tion of the steel frame supplied by
you to a minimum.

The CHURCHWARDENS unite

Steel or lron.

Chiming Machines.

Best Workmanship and
Satisfaction Guaranteed

FITTINGS

1?7 Lb ME in this expression of OF all kinds.

jplnion. The BELLRINGERS are

ilso unanimous in their praise of ARTISTIC WROUGHT IRON
mthe alterations effected by you. BRACKETS.

Yours truly,
CHAS. EDMUNDS,
Vicar of Broomfield.
8SIS C. CARR, LTD.
Smethwick.

MALLEABLE IRON BRACKETS
Best Bell Boris.
BEPAIBS AND BBBANGJN3
IK ALL BRANCHES.
BELLHANQERS sent to Inspect

Kindly ask us to Inspect, Report and report on Bells and Towcri

md Tender before deciding your
Contract,— we may be able to

tMtst yon. SEND FOR CATALOGUE.

ESTABLISHED 1760.

JOHN NICOLL,

Churcn Bell Hope and Clock Rope
Manufacturer,

<, QUEEN'S ROAD, PECKBAM, LONDON, 5.E.

'Two minutes from Queen's Road Station, L.B. & S.C. Railway)

Late 188, Keeton's Road, Bermondsey.

Maker to St. Paul's Cathedral, Westminster Abbey, Imperial Instltuta,

Canterbury, Edinburgh, St. Alban's, Lincoln, Durham, Peterborough.

'"Melbourne (Australia), Rochester, Dublin, St. Patrick's, Manchester
and Worcester Cathedrals etc., etc.
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EIGHT BELL PEAL.

CLIFTON, BRISTOL.
GLOUCESTER AND BRISTOL DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION.
On Saturday, September 19, 1914, in Three Hours and Ten Minutes,
At the Pabish Church,

A PEAL OF KENT TREBLE BOB MAJOR, 5088 CHANCES;
Tenor 13 cwt., in G.

‘W alter 1. ...Treble

Rawlings William W hite ... &5
Fred G. May .ceevceennen, 2 Henry B. Bort . ... b6
Albert Stowell 3 Alfred E. Reeves T
Richard Clark... 4 Isaac Long ...Tenot
Composed by Henry Dains, and
Conducted by Fred 6. May. "

*  First peal of Major. The above was rung muffled as a tribute of
respect to the late Mr. N. Strickland, who was a sidesman for a
number of years at the above church, also secretary for over 30 years
to the late Sunday School Teachers' Association.

BISHOPWEARMOUTH, SUNDERLAND.
DURHAM AND NEWCASTLE DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION.
On Monday, September 21, 1914, in Two Hours and Fifty-three Minutes,
At the Church ok St. Michael,
# PEAL OF 8TEDMAM TRIPLES, S040 CHANCES |

Sir Arthur Heywood's Variation of Thurstans'.

Tenor 11J cwt.

Ernest E. Ferry .. Treble Alfred E. Hillier 5
Thomas W. Ditchburn ... 2 Joseph W . Parker . 6
T homas Richardson........ 3 Robert L. Patterson ... 7
W illiam W. Sinclair ... 4 Richard W. Langton ..Tenor
Conducted by joseph W. Parker.
Rung, with the bells fully muffled, as a last token of respect to the

late Thomas Hudson, for many years belfry sidesman at this church,
and formerly secretary and vice-president of the Durham and New-
castle Diocesan Association, who was interred at Bishopwearmoutti
Cemetery on this day.

HANDBELL PEALS.
SURFLEET, LINCOLNSHIRE.
THE LINCOLN DIOCESAN GUILD.
On Monday, September 14, 1914, in Ttvo Hours and Fifty-four Minutes,
At the Vicarage,

A PEAL OF CRANDSIRE CATERS, 5003 CHANCES;
Albert H. W ard ........ 1—2 | Rev. E. Bankes James ..*5—%$
sRupert Richardson . 3—4 | Rev. H. Law James . 7—8

‘Miss W inifred M. Hague ... 9—10
Composed by w illiam Hudson, and
Conducted by the Rev. H. Law James.

* First peal of Caters in hand.

SURFLEET, LINCS.
THE LINCOLN DIOCESAN GUILD.
On Tuesday, September 15, 1914, in Two Hours and Thirty-Five Minutes,
At "Glyn Garth,"”
A PEAL OF STEDMAN TRIPLES, 5040 CHANCES;
Sir A. Heywood's Variation of Thurstans'
1—2 "Albert H.w ard 5—6
R upert Richardson 3—4 fFred W ilford 7—S
Conducted by clement Glenn.
Umpire: 3. w. Seamer.
* First handbell peal in the method, f First handbell peal by
F. Wilford, for whom it was rung as a birthday compliment.

Four-Part.

Clement Glenn

EALING, MIDDLESEX.
THE MIDDLESEX COUNTY ASSOCIATION AND
LONDON DIOCESAN GUILD.
On Thursday, September 17, 1914, in Two Hours and Thirty-five Minutes,
At 52, Lammas Park Road,
A PEAL OF BOB MAJOR, 5472 CHANCES ;
George E. Harbour 1—2 James R.
J. Armiger Trollope . 3—4 W illiam Lawrence
Composed by J. A. Trollope, and
Conducted by J. R. Mackman.
Umpire: A. H. Harbour.
This peal has 6th extent both ways.

Mackman...

5C
7-3
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SURFLEET. LINCS.
THE LINCOLN DIOCESAN GUILD.
Oi Friday, September 18, 1914, in Three Hours and Six Minutes,

At " Glyn Garth,"
A PEAL OF B8TEDMAH CATERS, 5198 CHANCES ;
*Albert H. Ward 1—2 1 Clement Glenn . 5—6
*Rupert Richardson 3—4 | sidney F. Palmer 7—8

9— 10
and

*Miss W inifred M. Hague
Composed by c. H. Hatteksley,
Conducted by clement Glenn.
« First handbell peal of Stedman Caters.

LONDON.
THK MIDDLESEX COUNTY ASSOCIATION AND
LONDON DIOCESAN GUILD.

On Friday, September IS, 1914, in Three Hours and Twenty-six Minutes,
At 129, Brunswick Street, Haggerston,
A PEAL OF STEDMAN CINQUES, 5007 CHANCES ;

Bertram Prewett 1—2 Arthur F. Shepherd 7—8
W illiam Shepherd 3—4 George R. Pye s 9— 10
Wiilliam Pye ... 5—6 Alfred W. Grimes ii— 12

Composed by Gabriel Lindoff. and
Conducted by w illiam Pye.
Umpire: W. J. Nudds.

LEISTON, SUFFOLK.
THE NORWICH DIOCESAN ASSOCIATION.
On Saturday, September 19, 1914. in Two Hours and Six Minutes,
In the Belfry of St. Margaret's Church,
A PEAL OF KENT TREBLE BOB MAJOR, 5056 CHANCES ;
«Allen F. Bailey 1—2 | Ernest S. Bailey
Charles F. Bailey 3—4 | James M. Bailey ..o

Composed by Gabriel Lindoff, and
Conducted by charles F. Bailey.
Umpires: C. sampson and €. H. Bailey.

* First peal of Treble Bob in hand.

5—6

RINGERS AND THE WAR.

THE NATIONAL RELIEF FUND.
A MONTHLY COLLECTION.

We publish below a further list of the contributions to
the Prince of Wales’ National Relief Fund which have been
sent in in connection with our appeal. We invite all who
have not yet sent their mite to help the good cause, and
we shall be only too glad to acknowledge any sum, how-
ever small. .

Various useful suggestions have been made for assisting
the effort, such as a “ Shilling Fund.” “W .K.” now
asks why ringers could not have a monthly collection in
aid of the cause as long as the war lasts. “ Admitted,” he
says, “ a great many could not give much, but if 20,000,
say, gave 3d. a month, that would be a gift worth having.”

Needless to say we should be delighted if any such
action could be generally taken. We should like to see
some sustained effort made such as this, which is, of
course, on the lines of what the Bushey Society are doing,
with their weekly collection. Let us all make a great effort
in this national emergency and one worthy of us as ringers.

£ s d

Amount already acknowledged ... ... 15 5 o

Mr. A. W. Brighton, London ... . 026
St. Mary’s Ringers, Baldock, Herts (per Mr.

John ]. Cawdell) e 080
Christ Church Ringers, Burbage, Buxton (per

Mr. H. K T K ) e 060

Milnrow Parish Church Ringers (per Mr. John

H. C. Massey) ... o010 o
Parish Church Ringers, Sible Hedingham,

Essex (per Mr. L. Wiseman)
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Worcestershire and Districts Association, col-

lected at Northern Branch Meeting (per Mr.

E. J. Dowler, Hon. Sec.) e 00
Nuneaton Kingers (per Mr. T. W. Chapman) 010 6
“ H.J.,” Stockport 020
Ringers of St. Mary’s, Padbury, Bucks (p.r

Mr. C. GOUQGN) e 050

N8 14 o
] ROLL OF HONOUR.

W%,Biggleswade baud, has contributed three members to the Bed-

fordsbiro”Yeomanry:—

Sorgt. L. C. Franklin
Trpr. R. M. Spoug, end
Trpr. H. B. Smith.
Sergt. Amos Constant, of St. George's, Gravesend, Army Ser-
vice Corps, at present with the Colours.
Sapper W. Rowe (15,409), of St. Peters, Croydon, A Fortress
Co., R.E., Line of Communications, Expeditionary Force.
e J. E. L. Ccckey, of Kanmoor, Sheffield, and lion, secretary of
tlie Sheffield District Society, Sheffield City Battalion Yorks
and. Lancashire Regiment.
J. Marks, of St. Marys, Bletchicy, Royal Horse Artillery.
Edwin_G. Pipe, of St. Michael's, Beccles, Oxfordshire
Infantry.
The following is a further list of ringcrs who are giving their
services to King and. country in response to the call to arms.—
Pte. F. J.” Keen, of St. Editha’s, Tamworth.
Alfred Knight, of St.
Territorials.
Perca/rmenighton, of St. Nicholas', Islip, Lord Kitchener's new

Light

Nicholas', Islip, Northants, Northants

Sapper C. Stapleton, of St. Peter's de Merton, Bedford, No. 1
bectiort, 2nd Co. East Anglian Royal Engineers, now ;.t
Fornham Park, Bury St. Edmund's.

Leader F. Brough (S), of St. Paulinus', Crayford, Kent, Orderly
and Dispatdi carrier, stationed at Woolwich Barracks.
Walter Ryder, jun., of St. James’, Birch, Manchester, 2nd Batt.

6th Manchester Torritorials.

K. G. Hawkins, of Fulmer, Bucks, has enlisted in the 2nd Life
Guards, Windsor.

C. H. Austin (son of Mr. J. Austin, of Gloucester), and R N.
Runham (of Reading), members of the Spitalfields Foundry
Guild, have joined tine Coldstream Guards, at Caterliam.

Pte Arthur Duncan Davies, of St. Peter's Guild, Slaunton-on-
Arrow, Ist Batt. Herefordshire Territorials.

J. Elliott, of St. Mary’s, Kelvcdon, R.A.M.C., Aldershot.

H. Rogers, of St. Mary*», Kelvedou. Essox Regiment, Harwich.

A. Lancaster, of All Saints'. Peering, Essex Regiment, Shoreham

Sergt Clins. Wybrow, of Fakenliam, F Company 5tli Batt. Nor-
folk Regiment, East Anglian Division.

Pte R. A. Kirby, of St. Peter's, St. Albans, East Kent Regimont.

The Buffs " stationed at The Citadel, Dover (No. 1 section)

Pte F. A. Hull, of St. Peter’s, St. Albans, 1st Herts, R.F.A.,
stationed at Hertford.

W. 'SAmith, of All Saints' Loughborough band, joined Kitclioncr's

rmy.

J. Powell, of All Snints’, Loughborough, Naval Reserve (called

up).

Waltg_r) Greening and Frel Price, of The Coddington, Hereford-
shire, have joined the Territorials.

William R. Wood and Charles Mills, both of Iden, Sussex,
enlisted in Lord Kitchener's Army, Royal Sussex Regiment,
Colchester.

Percy Nash and James Wood, also of lden, Sussex, enlisted in
Iéord Kitchener's Army, Royal Sussex Regiment, Shoreham,
USSeX.

NorrRan Crouch, Brede, Sussex, enlisted in Lord. Kitchener's

rmy.

William Bennett, Re/e, Sussex, enlisted in the (Rye) E Co. 5th
Battalion, Royal Sussex Regt. (Territorial Force).

RINGER WOUNDED. .
Lcc.-Sergt. G. Mackman, a member of the St. Peter-at-Arelies Co.,
Lincoln, and of the 1st Lincoln Regiment (brother of Mr. J. R.
Mackman. of Southall) has been wounded in action, and has returned
t%IEngIand. He is now in Devonport Hospital, and progressing favour-
ablv.

WHAT WELLS IL\S DONE.

The ringers of Wells are certainly doing their share in the nation's
emergency. Five of their number are serving with the colours, and
seven others are in the National Reserve. In addition, instead of
?av(ijng an annual outing, they sent five guineas to the local relief
und.
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CLUN CHURCH BELLS.
DEDICATION CEREMONY.

Clun’s picturesque and quaint welcome to its bells, which we recently
illustrated, has aroused a widespread' interest among ringers in tho
doings of this little Shropshire village in regard to tie restoration of
the peal, ‘llic bells, which were conveyed to the church with such
charming ceremony, have now been successfully hung, and, as briefly
mentioned in our last issue, were, on Wednesday of last week, formally
dedicated, together with the clock and, font cover. The work has
been carried out in conjunction with the restoration of tho church
tower, and completes the restoration of the church which was com-
menced some 40 years ago. The work which has been done represents
a great deal of Self-denying effort, but the parishioners have, rallied
loyally to the assistance of the Vicar and the church authorities, and
tlie big undertaking has, been successfuII% carried out. Among those
who have worked indefatigably to secure the renovation and augmenta-
tion of the bells has been Mr. W. Mead, nnd ho has written the
following interesting history of tho bells of the village:(—

THE STORY OP THE BELLS.

It is very probable that dun Church was ono of the first in this
{)art of the country to have a peal of bells. Early in the 16th century
here were many sets of three or four bells each,” but few of a greater
number. Before the tower was destroyed by fire in the civil war there
appears to have been four bells in it, ‘as méntioucd in the Brief issued
in 1665-6, whioh says “ the 6toegle with four large bells . . . utterly
destroyed.* These were no doubt melted, as a portion of bell metal
was found some 35 or 40 years ago, and made into bearings for a
lathe, and several small piocos have been dug up during the present
tower restoration. In 1668 a peal of five bells was hung after the
ro-building of tho tower in 1667 andi another added, probably as a
thanksgiving 'bell, in 1681 to complete the peal to 6ix, part of tho
cost as inscribed on tho bell, being defrayed by the Vicar at that time,
the Rev. Joseph Jackson, so that Clun was conspicuous for its bells
246 years ago. During all these years that the bells had done duty,
and ‘no doubt been rung for many a victory on land and sea, very
little repairs had been dono to frames or fitjtin%s so that at last they
had become quite unringable, and had remained so for some 25 or so
ears. Several attempts had been made during that time to raise
unds for rehanging, and it was eventuallz therefore decided to dis-
patch tlie old six bells to the Whitechapel Foundry and have them re-
cast, increased in weight and two new trebles added to complete the
octave, the founders’ marks and quaint inscriptions on the old six
bells being faithfully reproduced on the new peal with the addition
of the words, “ Recast by M. and s., 1914.” "[Ik- new treble is the
gift of the Creswell family. The cost of the second bell is defrayed by
subscription. The weight of the new* tenor is 13 cwt. 3 grs. 14 Ibs., the
total weight of the now peal being 63 cwt. 2 grs. 3 Ibs. The work of
recasting the old six and tho addition of the two new trebles was
entrusted to the noted bell founders, Messrs. Mears and Stainbank,
who have produced « very musical peal in every way worthy of the
church. = The repairs and enlargements to the old oak frame, and
tho hanging of the new peal with entirely now fittings, was placed in
the hands of Messrs. Day and Son, Eye, Suffolk, who have carried it
out very satisfactorily.

THE INSCRIPTIONS.

Tho inscriptions on the bells are as follow:—

16"SI'Ecgenor.—God Save the King. Thomas Powell, Edward Bowen C W

7th.—Soli Deo Gloria Pax Hominibus, 1668.

6th.—Sing Wee Merily Peace Be© To Clun, 1668.

5th.—J tvUs Bee Our Good Speede, 1668.

4th.—All Prayse And Glory Be To God For Ever. T P E. B. CW
of Clun 1668. *

3rd.—John Latward Richard’ Bowen Wardens 1681 Pearte Of This
Is Tho Guift Of Joseph Jactson.

2nd—A D 1914. D. Machen, M.A., Vicar. G. Townsend, W.
Darroll, Wardens. “ Woe Is Unto Me, If | Preach Not The Gospel/’

Treble.—To Tho Glory of God and in Memory of Clara Creswell,
Who Died July 17, 1886, Te Deum Laudamus.

A small bell, which has long lain unused at Trinity Hospital, has
been lent by tho Trustees to the Parish Church, and has I>een hung
in the Tower. Its history is uncertain: possibly it is the old Sacring
Bell, originally belonging to the Parish Church: tho Inscription is

MAI : NO : BETUR :: BEL BE : MAD OF BRAS

‘file tower under tho capable superintendence of the architect, Mr
Stallybnass, has been thoroughly restored from the baso to the sum-
mit, the foundations under pinned' and the buttresses strengthened
the work having been most satisfactorily carried out. It is interestin
to record that it was proposed to have the bells scheme as a memorial
of Her Majesty's Queen Victoria’s Jubilee (1887). A petition signed
by almost every parishioner wag taken round by Messrs. J. G. Buchanan
and W. Mead, but laUir it was felt that an, organ was a more impera-
tive need, and the bells scheme was postponed. Another meritorious
effort was made in the Diamond Jubilee year, but that unfortunately
proved unsuccessful. Now the Vicar, clergy, churchwardens and
parishioners feel devoutly grateful at the successful development of
the various schemes, and have reason to bo proud of possessing in
their midst a Houso of God fully worthy of the ancient traditions of
the Anglican Communion, the town and county.
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THE CEREMONY.

Tho dedication service was largely attended, and in tho abscnco
of the Bishop and tho Archdoacon of Ludlow, the ceremony was per-
formed by the Rural Dean, (tho Rev. E. W. Brown, of Bedstone). Tlio
Rev. V. A. Orcswell, of St. Weonards, represented tho OrcsweH family
and numerous local clergy woro present. Tho members of the Parish
Council also attended, and the servico was intoned, by tho rRoy. G. D.
Macpherson. The. Vicar road tho lesson, and, tho address was given
by tile Rev. W. G. Clark Maxwell, of Bridgnorth, who, basing his
remarks on Psabn cl, i, said that was a groat and notable day in tho
history of Clun. It would bo a folly to say it was tho most, notabto
or the greatest day, but certainly it would rank aniongét tho great
days that had been. That was a great day moro than 1,000 yoars
a?o_when men first built that, sanctuary in Clun to tho honour of
Almighty God and continuously for public worship till that day. But
the church of to-day was not tho church of that bygono dzéy. It was
a great day for Clun when thoso stately arches woro framed and men
re-built in that moro noblo andiskilful fashion they had learnt that
House of God to His honour and glory. Another ﬂroat day was al-
most 800 years ago when after tho turmoil and upheaval of tho civil
wars tho church was reoponed for diviuo worship. ~ Another great day
was when tho bells were put ir. tho tower. It was a great, day when
35 years ago tho churah was re-opened after restoration. Tho restora-
tion of the lower was the completion of tho whole scheme, which they
celebrated that day. Their ancient massivo towor had been restored
to its solidity without losing its ancient character. May that tower
bo a landnuirk to all tho country round and a silent reminder of
heavenly things to tlio district for another 1,000 years. May the
bolls ring out 1,000 years of war and ring in a thousand years of peace.
May they as the clock ticked away tlio flight of time valuo more and
moro the preciousness of time and” remind them of eternity. The font
cover kindlydgiven through the generosity of Archdeacon Oldham and
tho clock, and the bells tho generous gifts of kindly donors, the church
organ were all things solemnly dedicated to God’s service. May they
stimulate them all the greater to praise God in His holiness and praise
Him in the firmament of His power.

The offertory was devote! to tho Restoration Fund.

. THE RINGERS.

Tho congregation dispersed wliilo tho bells rang out merrily. six-
scores of Grandsirc Doubles and touches of Triph's were rung, among
those taking part being: Rev. V. A. Creswell, Vicar of St. Weonards;
Rev. Il. J. Scott, Clun; Mr. J. G. Buchanan (Master, Hereford Dio-
cesan Guild); Mr. Day, E%e, Suffolk; Mr. A. Hughes, London; Mr. \V.
Mead, Clun; Messrs. W. R. Nash. A. Chester (Ludlow), C. Minton, li.
Robinson, Em. Beddoeis, S. Pearce (Bishop’s Castle), G. W. Roberts
(Clun); G. Matthews, P. Lockley (Leintwardino), Ilall (Church StreU
to[R, I1. Sheppard (Wolverhampton), and others.

le festival was continued on the Sunday, and at the morning ser-
vice the preacher was tho Rev. C. W. O. Jcnkyni, M.A. (Master of tho
Oxford, Guild), who gave) a very impressive address in which ho urged
tho new band of ringers to set a liigli standard of rlngm% and work
hard to reach it. Tlio preacher in the evening was the lItev. A. )
Ll. Kenyon, M.A. ﬁRector of Ludlow), and formerly Vicar of Clu1,
Both sermons were listened to by large congregations.

The offertories, for the bolls fund, amounted to £34 0s. Id.

The new bells were rung for an hour beforo the four services, and
after tlie evening service. Mr. Hughes, of London, very kindly stayed
over tho week-end, and ercatly assisted the now band, whilo the Rev.
V. A. Creswcll, Mr. A. Chester, Mr. C. Evans and Mr. Robt. Marsh a
(Oaker) also took part, the latter conducting a few 120’s of Doublt .
Tho principal conducting, lipwever, was done by tho Rev. C. W. 0.
Jenkyn, who expressed_himself well pleased with the new peal.

It "is mot uninteresting to note that included in the ringers who
opened Clun’s new peal were:—

One Justice of the Peaca.

Two Masters of Guilds.

Three Members of Central Council.

Six Members of Guilds Committees.

peace’ bell.
NEW USE FOR RUGBY SCHOOL'S BIG BELL.

The ma?]nlflcent service bell which Messrs. Taylor and Co., of Lough-
borough, havo recently placed in Rugby School, and which is admir
ably illustrated!l on another page, iS now being rung each day <«
noon as a “ peace bell/* The first occasion upon which it- wa6 so used
was on Tuesday of! last week, when, at Or. David's invitation, it was
rung by Mr. James George, Master of the Warwickshire Guild, *Yd
will” continue to be rung under his direction for a_ time. The
has been installed 'by tho family of the late Rev. Charles and Mrs.
Elsee. Its weight is 64 cwt. 2 grs. 20 |bs., it measures 5ft, 9*in. m
diameter, and tlhe note is B flat. It is probably the largest bcHooi
bell in the country. Tlie Elsoe Memorial Bell is tho largest in Wﬂi
wickshire, with the two exceptions of the Birmingham University bell,
which weighs six tons, and the bell at the Birmingham Town Hall,
which is about four tons in weight. Tho bell is inscribed: * In remem-
brance of Charles and Mary Anne Blsee, their children gave me lo
Rugby School.”  The School coat of arms and the School motto.
© Orandjo Laborando,’>ore also engraved on the bell, together wi
tho date (1914) and tlio name of the founders. Messrs. John nnd Dem-
son Taylor, of Lougliborougfo. In tone it is deep and musical.



September 25th, 1914. THE RINGING WORLD. 177

THE BELL OF RUGBY SCHOOL CHAPEL

(Weight 64cwt. 2qgrs. 2olbs.)

DEDICATED 21st JULY, 1914.

------------- NN ) A ——

JOHN TAYLOR & CO,
L OUGHBOROUGH.
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WEARS & Foundry Unique for Presentation.
Established
A.D. 1670. An Inkstand in the

— design of a —
Well - shaped Bell.

STAINBANK

Marked Silver will make a most
appropriate and useful Gift.

It can be supplied in the following sizes:—
Bellfounders & Bellhangers, Diameter 2Jin. 2fin. 3iin. 3Ain. 4m. 47in. 5in.

Price .. 9/- 13/6 17/6 22/6 27/6 33/- 46/6
Monogram or Inscriptions Engraved at Moderate Cnarges.

u_P_D Gold ith d
J . mUbiVlJ_]llJll,o smit Saillnversmith,
*W O K IN Gr
LONDON, E. (MAKER OF THE RINGERS' BADGE))

(11 - - 77
Change-Ringing
An Introduction to the Early Stages
--------------- of the Ait of -------—---emeem-

CHURCH OR HANDBELL RINGING

For the use of Beginners, by
CHARLES A. W. TROYTE.

[Fourth Edition.]

32 & 34, Whitechapel Road,

1 m )
m'oﬁ%?jmgmm* Complete edition, cloth, 2s. 6d. Small edition (up la
WA NTOTON VR and including 6-ball ringing), paper, IS.
Qi «'fir ;\/AF?IOVUS iﬁ\?ﬂ‘goﬁ/ltcirp?ru“ .
O A ELAND BROTHERS, High St., EXETER;
Te-0foM 1AUOALVS WELLS, GARDNER, DARTON & Co.,

— Paternoster Buildings London. —

The Jasper Snowdon Series.

ROPE-SIGHT. 1b 6d., sixth ed. 150 page*; treat* Plain Bob, ««m
mencing on three bails. .
GRANDSIRE. "2s. 6<l; second ed.; 264 pages; oommencing on t»»
n

Tenor Bell, 25£ cwt., of the new ring beils; complete with the Thompson Chart*, eto., 6to.
. STANDARD METHODS. 2* 6d.; fifth ed.; revised; to follow either
ot Ten at St. Peter’s, Brighton. of the above; Diagrams alone Is. 6d.; 41 page*; Letterprw*

alone Is. 6d.; 100 pages.
STEDMAN. 2s. 6d.; 275 pages, by the Rev. 0. D. P. Davies, MA .
with an appendix by Sir Aj-thur Heywood, Bart., eto., eto

TREBLE BOB. Part I. Is. 6d.; second ed.; with appendix; 10t
closely printed pages. Part Il., suited for Conductor* only:
very “r-arce; 2s. ljd.; 236 pages.

DOUBLE NORWICH C.B. Major. At present out of print.
ESTIMATES S U B M ITTE D SURPRISE PEALS. Cambridge, Superlative and London; compiling
Ail post free, on receipt of postal order, from

For Rehanging, Retuning and Recasting. WM. SNOWDON, Cartmel, Lancashire.
(N B.—A postcard will bring additional details if desired.)

FOR ARTISTIC

Musical Handbells In sets, Bell Ropes, &c. P E A L B O A R D S

Go to the EXPERT WRITERS.

At She Handbell Contests held annually in Manchester the ESTIMATES FREE FOR ANY DESCRIPTION
First Prize for the last 14 years has been awarded to bands . OF THIS KIND OF WORK.
using our bells, and o» twelve r/ those occasions they have gained

the Second Prize also F.W.COULTE R, oo orhcE CWekiNG P
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THE BELLS OF FAMOUS CHURCHES.

ST. MARGARET'S, WESTMINSTER.

- By J. R.

The earliest mention of the bells at St. Margaret’s that |
can discover is in 1527, when there appear to have been

Jerram.

five bells. An old record gives the weights thus :—
“ The first bell weith - - - - c:ccc Ib.
The second - . cccceexxi lb.
Thethird e, dccclvi Ib.
The fourth - - - - - - - mx Ib.
The fifth ., mccccccxiij Ib.

Sum of the weight of all the bellis - mmmmdccij Ib.”

In 1593 we find further records of the weights of the
bells then in existence, among which we may notice that
"the broken tennor waied mdcxxi Ib. weight.” It appears
that the bells, or some of them, had been recast in 1592,
but were not a success ; for in 1593 we find that these bells
were recast to replace those “ falsely and deceitfully made
by Valentine Trevor” in the previous year. Later on we
afind “ Paid to Mr. Moat (i.e. Robert Mott) the first of
November 1597 for new casting of the fourth bell, weying
>mdciii quarters (i.e., 16 cwt. 3 grs.) and for a new clapper
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weighing xlviii Ib.—”10 os. od.” In 1670 we find that
Michael Darbie cast two bells, for which he was paid
~47 10s. od. Among the early payments for ringing we
find in 1553, “ Paid for bread and drink on Ash Wednesday
to the ringers at the victory and overthrow of Wyat and
his adherents, 8d.” Previous to this, in 1548, we find
“ Paid to the King’s amner, when he would have sealed up
the Church Doors at the departure of the King’s majesty
the 2nd day of July, because the bells were not rong—
2s. 4d.”— In 1586, “ Paid for ringing at the beheading of
the Queen of Scotts—is. od.” And again in 1605, “ Paid
the ringers for ringing at the time when the Parliament
house should have been blown up, 10s.”

The present peal, tenor 26 cwt., was cast in 1739, as a

peal of eight, by Samuel Knight, of the Holborn foundry-
The two trebles were added in 1761 by Lester and Pack>
who recast the tenor at the same time. The eighth and
ninth have since been recast.

The inscriptions at the present time are as follows :(—

Treble.
LESTER < PACK OF LONDON FECIT, 1761.
Second.
LESTER & PACK OF LONDON FECIT, 1761.
Third.
S e K .:.1739.
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Fourth.

S e:eK o: 0« 1739-
Fifth.

S .:.K. ::.1739.
Sixth.

S e:eK .:.1739.
Seventh.

ROBERT CATLIN FECIT, 1739 <SS <S>

Eighth.

Mr. THOs. HATCH <& GEORGE STUBBS,
Esgq, CHURCHWARDENS, 1773, T. JANAWAY
FECIT

Ninth. -

THOMAS MEARS OF LONDON, FOUNDER,
1834, JAMES WEBBER, D.D.,, MINISTER OF ST.
MARGARET'S. WILLIAM FORTY, ROBERT
BRYAN, CHURCHWARDENS.

Tenor.

Dr. THOs. WILLSON, MINESTER, SAMI.
PEIRSON & Wm. IELFE. CHIWARDENS. LES-
TER d> PACK OF LONDON FECIT

\~y [arms, 2 daggers saltire surmounted by letter D.]

I may here observe that Robert Catlin, whose name
appears as founder of the seventh bell, was bell-hanger to
Samuel Knight, and afterwards succeeded him in the
business.

The first true peal of Grandsire Triples rung here in
1751 is thus recorded on a tablet:—

" Sunday, July 7th, 1751, The Society of Union Scholars rang in
this Steeple with two singles the first true and complete peal of 5040

Grandsire Tripples, which peal was performed in 3 hours and 15
minutes, by the following persons :

James Davis . Treble James Vickers

James Albion . Second James Newby

Jacob Hall . Third John Lloyd .evcvviveenens

T homas Jackson ... Fourth Geo. Fleory & Ed. Davis Tenor

This peal was composed and called by John Holt.
Captain Nicholas Spencer "
and Mr. William Goff Churchwardens.

I must here observe that Mr. John Holt did not ring him-

self in this peal, but sat on a chair in the belfry and con-
ducted the same.

The following peals were also rung here by the Union
Scholars before the peal was augmented to ten bells. All
were conducted-by John Holt.

October 27th, 1747,—5040 Bob Major.
July 9th, 1749,—6000 Bob Major.

July 8th, 1750,—5040 Double Bob Major.
March 14th, 1750,—5120 Union Bob.
February 16th, 1752,—5040 Court Bob.

| regret to say that | have no copies of tablets recording
more recent peals. Perhaps someone else will kindly
supply these if any exist.

IRTHLINGBOROUGH RINGER'S DEATH.
Wo much regret to announce tlie death of Mr. Walter German, a
member of the Irthlingsborough, Nortliants, band, who passed awiy
recently at the early age of 26 years, after a short illness, the deceased
being a victim of consumption.” The deceased rang his first peal, one
of Double Norwich, in December, 1908, and had rung 25 peals alto-
gethel_’, as follows: Bristol Surprise 2, London Surprise 4, Cambridge
urprise 1, Superlative Surprise 4, Double Norwich Major 12, Stedman
Triples 2.
ic funeral took place on Tuesday of last week, the mortal remains
being laid to rest in the cemetery, four of tho deceased's fellow ringers
acting as bearers. In the evening the members of the local com#an
gathered at the Parish Church, and. with the bells doe.ply muffled,
ran'g 832 London Surprise Major: J. Mawby 1, A. Perkins 2, J. Ward
3. R. Horn 4, J. Houghton 5, W. Perkins 6, A. Tyler (conductor) 7,
J. Garratt 3.
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DEATH OF A SOMERSET RINGER.
CLOSE OF A LONG AND ACTIVE CAREER.

The Bath and Wells Association has lost ono of its first and moat
active members by the death of Mr. Henry Moore, of Minehcad. The
deceased, who was 60 years of age, contracted a severo illness some,
time ago, from which ho partially recovered, but a second attack
Proved fatal, and despite every medical atteution and nursing care,
ie succumbed in Dunster Hospital. Mr. Moore, who was an old in
habitant of Minchcad, was a gvirdcner by trade, and gained some
celebrity in horticulture, iu tho county by liis successes at the variou8
important shows, where he invariably carried off prizes against strong
competition.

It was, however, as a change ringer that ho was best known an*l
valued among a largo circle of friends. For nearly forty years he
was a member of tlie Minehead Parish Church company, and when
some >eara ago a great impetus in tho diocese was given to the science
of change ringing, chiefly through the exertions of the late Rev. J. U.
Todd, and the Bath and Wells i->iooesan Association of Chang©Ringers
was later formed, Mr. Moore joined the society, of which lie remained
a member up to the day of his death. He studied change ringing to
such an effect as to become the leading ringer of tho district. His
help wa& always, freely given, when asked tor, at all meetings for
the purpose of change rlnglng, and with others he took a leading
ﬂart m spreadiug a knowledge of tho art among any anxious to learn

e was also himself a composer of peale, in tjfee various methods knowu
to ringers, often conducting at some one or other of the churches iu
the neighbourhood peals oi his own composing. Owing to a disagree-
ment some six years ago between Mr. Moore and the Minehead Guild,,
he severed his connection with the tower with which he had been so
long associated. Since that time lie devoted his energies to instruct-
ing youn?] ringers in the neighbourhood, and at Carliampton, where lie
did much good work, his presence will be greatly missed. M,
Moore took part in 85 peals on tower bells, and one handbell(fse;d
for the Bath and Wells Association. Of this number ho conducted 43,
his last peal beinq ono of seven 720’s of Kent Treble Bob Minor run's
at Timberscombe last March on his GQi birthday.

The funeral was attended by a large number of ringers, the fint
Bortlon of the service being conducted at St. Andrews Church by the

ev. Preb. Saiusbury. The hymn, “ Rock of Ages,” was sung, and
as the fuueral procession passed out of the church the organist, M\
Walton Evans, played tho * Dead March * from “ Saul.” At tho
cemetery, where the interment took place, the Rev. B. Smith officiated.
The chief mourners were:  Messrs. Arthur, Bert, Walter, Harry,
Leonard, Harold, and Wilfred Moore (sons), Miss Moore and Mrs. I\
Hole ﬁdaughters), and Mr. Arthur Moore (brother). Tho bearers wer-
the following members of the Bath and Wells Diocesan Association >£
Cliauge Ringers: Messrs. J. Farmer, R. Farmer, E. Parker and |I.
Watts, all of Carhampton; W. Hoyle, Minehead; and W. Benncit,
Nettlecombe. In front also walked other members, viz., Messrs. J.
J. Hole, Dunster: A.J. Chilcott, Withycombe; J. Sully, Stogumbe> ;
J. Kent, Selwortliy; and G. Stacey, Minehead (hon. secretary of the
lhinster Deanery Branch of the Association); with tho Rev. A. A
Brockington, Carhampton (president of the branch). In the evening
some of the ringers, by permission of the Vicar, rang muffled touch-
on the Carhampton bells. Some beautiful flowers were placed uon
(tihe grave, iucluding wreaths from various bodies of ringers in the
istrict.

YORKSHIRE ASSOCIATION.

A meeting of the Western District was held under favourable condi-
tions at Bmgley, when upwards of 50 members and friends were pre-
sent. _During the afternoon and evening the bells were kept going in
a variety of touches, ranging from Bob Major to Double Norwich.
After the committee meeting at the Church House, a substantial meat
tea was partaken of at tho Assembly Rooms.—The business meeting
followed, the President (Mr. G. Holland) being in the chair, supported
by the Ringing Master (Mr. P. J. Johnson), members of the commit
too, etc. e business was largely of a routine character, the chiff

oints settled being the date of the next quarterly meeting, viz.,

aturday, 5th December. No invitations being received, the venue
was left to the committee to select.—A vote of thanks to the Vicar
and churchwardens for the use of the bells, and to the Church Ilons®
committee for placing the Church House at the disposal of tho mem-
bers for the day, was proposed by Mr. P. J. Johnson, and secondvd
by Mr. J. Ambler—In tho absence of tho Vicar and churchwardens.
Mr. W. Foster responded.—Mr. J. Cotterill lproposed, and Mr. F. W

Dixon seconded, a vote of thanks to tho local company, and the ladic*
who helped at the tea table.—Mr. Walker, of the local comﬁany abl

replied.—Inndbell ringing was_afterwards indulged in at the Churc

House, and brought a very enjoyable meeting to a close.

THE LATE MR. S. REEVES.

The following contributions towards the memorial tablet to the late-
Mr. S. Reeves are acknowledged with thanks: Messrs. J. Carter, 5s..
per R. P. Brindley. 5s.; J. George. Jno. Smith, A. Walker, 2s. 6d.
each.—Hon. Treasurer, Rev. E. V. Cox, 104. Borneo Street, \Nalsall.



September 2511), 1914.

THE RINGING WORLD.

The Perfect Cure

“ BAD GOING " BELLS.

The “WARNER”

Self=Aligning
Self=Lubricating

Oil Bath & Oil Ring Bearings

Patent No. 18896.

The fixing of the above bearings is so extremely simple that
Ringei's with a good engineering knowledge can re-hang any °‘bad
going’ bells, provided that instructions are adhered to.
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WORCESTERSHIRE ASSOCIATION.
HELP FOR THE BELIEF FUND.

The quarterly meeting of tho Northern Branch of the Worcester-
shire and Districts Association was held at Cradley 01l Saturday last.
Owing to tlie crisis through which we arc passing, the attendance was
under the average, but, still, it was very satisfactory, about 40 mem-
bers being present from Old Hill, Halefowen, Wollaston, Stourbridge,
Clent, Brierley Hill, Erdington, Hagley, Smethwick, Netherton, Old-
swioford Wordsley, Rowley, Solly OaK, and. tho local company. i}
the kind permission of the Vicar, the bells were open for ringing, a
facility which was much aé)preciated. Durir'l? the afternoon and even-
ing touches were rung in Stcdxnau, Double Norwich. Grandsire, Treble
Bob and London Surprise. . .

At tho service, which waa choral, the address was given by tnc Vicar
(the Rev. Il. P. Bennett), who prefaced his address by extending a
hearty welcome to tho Association at Cradley. They were, however,
he said, un<bcr a cloud at present, but they all hoped, it would not
be for long. Basing his address on the text, “ Do all to the Glory of
God/’ he said in rlnglngi tilers was a great deal'of pleasure, but m
learning to ring one na<l got to make a gjreat deal of sacrifice to be-
come proficient, and it took not one or two months, but many to be-
come proficient in the art. Ringing brought out the character and per-
severance of the men who took part, in_it. It taught people patience
and developed the mind. At tho same time their first objlect_ should be
to iw the bells to the glorv of God. The purpose of bell ringing was
to call pxiplc tc worship, and to be out of the hearing of the bells
made the Sabbnth, to his mind, un—EnfgIlsh. Sunday was never meant
to be a gloomy day. It was a day of rest and a day of worship. It
should keep away gloom and sadness, and it always gave him the
greatest of pleasure to sec the boll ringers in their place on Sundays,
doing their duty to tho glory of God.—The address was very much
apgreciated by the members, . .

fter the Service te-a, which had been kindly provided by anony-
mous donors, was much enjoyed, numerous ladies looking after the
wants of tlie visitors.

t the business meeting! which followed, the \icar presided.—A letter
from Mr. S Grove (the Master of the Northern Branch) was read, 1l
which he stated that he hoped the news from the front would be such
that not only would the bells be rung but that they also would be

fired. L ,

Halesowen was selected for the next meeting 1t January—Mr. 5.
Grove was re-elected Ringing Master: Mr. J. Pigott, representative on
the Central Committee; and Mr. Jas. Dowler. secretary and treasurer.
—In moving a vote of thanks to the officers, Mr. A. E. Pairscns paid a
very high compliment to the work of the secretary, which was very
much appreciated.—Tlio Vicar and churchwardens ‘were elected lion,
members. — It was reported that Mr. David Hcathcock, of
Oldswinford, was serving with the Durham Light Infantry, and that
Mr. W. J. Brotherton, of Wollaston, and Messrs. Hodkiss and Cook,
of Brierley Hill, had also responded to the call to arms.—A collection
01l behalf of the Prince of Wales' National Fund was made, and
resulted in £1 being forwarded through the Editor of the “ Ringing
World.” —A hearty vote, of thanks was accorded to the Vicar for ar-
ranging tho service, and for his address, and to the donors of tho tea,
and this brought to a close a meeting, which, under the circumstances,
was a fairly satisfactory one.

TERRITORIALS' SUNDAY AFTERNOON
EXCURSION.

Writing from Bustard Camp, Salisbury Plain. Sergeant C.
H. Russell, of A Company, 4th Hants Regiment,, sends
an _account of _a little trip arranged by some of
tile Territorials while in camp as a proof of what may be done
under difficulties. ~ We _had heard, he says, that a_nice ring of six
b.dls were available to Territorials at Amesbur& a village seven miles
from our camp. A party of us arranged to walk there on Sunday last,
and we had a most enjoyable time. Passing Stonehenge on the way,
we arrived at Amesbury about 4 o'clock, and, after having tea, went
aloft. With th « help of Mr. F. Precey (SallsburY) the following rang
two courses of Bob Minor: Lce.-Corpl. 'C. Bunch 1, Pte G. Pullingcr 2,
Ptc G. Butler 3. F. Precey 4, Corpl. Worsfold 5, Sergt. C. Russell
(conductor) 6. Afterwards a local man, J. Thorn, rang the treble to
a six-score of Grandsire Doubles, conducted by F Precey. Then we
got_home three six-scores of Stedman, and, to finish up, the following
all-T- rritorinl band rang a six-score: Pte C. Butler 1. Lce.—Core!l. C.
Bunch 2. Pte G. Butler Ezconductor) 3. Ser(};t. C. Russell 4, Corpl. Wors-
fold 5. Sergt. Mclls 6. We gained the following information about
the bells from one of the local men. The treble and fifth were cast in
1G19, the second and 3rd in 1723. Tho fourth wyas recast in 1800, and
the tenor in 1880 by Warner and Sons. The tenor is a fine-toned bell,
and the ring,_with the addition of two trebles, would/ make o splen-
did octave. The tenor is 22 cwt. As we had to be in camp by 9.30
we started on our return journey almost immediately, and dropped
0l to a bit of luck, in the shape of a motor lorry, which took Us to
within a mile and a half of our camp, after en'{(l)ying a very nice
Sundav afternoon. Our best thanks are duo to the Vicar of Amesbury,
and also tho local Tingors, who kindly stood aside to let us ring.

By a ty'gpgr_aphical_ error in our article last week on the Six Greatest
Men in 'Ringing History, the name of the late Mr. Jasper Snowdon
appeared as Joseph Snowdon.
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NOTICES.
The Editorial O ffice Of “ The Ringing W orid," tO
which all communications should be sent, is 9, Com-

mercial Road, W oking.

Matter intended for publication should reach the Editor
not later thanfirst post on Tuesday morning, but all reports,
should be sent in as early as possible. Records of peals rung
after Saturday will be accepted up to Wednesday morning
first post, although insertion is not guaranteed in the same
week's issue.

Re CHARLES H. HATTERSLEY, ESQ., PRE-
SENTATION. — SPECIAL NOTICE.— A special
general meeting of all Sheffield and District Ringers will
be held at The Yorkshireman’s Arms, Burgess Street,
Sheffield, on Saturday, September 26th, 1914, at 8.30 p.m.,
to discuss important business and arrange for presentation
of the illuminated address at an early date.— Frank Willey,
Secretary, 110, Peter Street, Sheffield.

THE ANCIENT SOCIETY OF COLLEGE YOUTHS
(established 1637). — Meetings for practice will be-
held at St. Michael's, Cornhill, on Sept. 29th ; St. Mary'’s,
Walthamstow, on Saturdays; both at 8 p.m.— William T.
Cockerill, Hon. Secretary, 32, Edgeley Road, Clapham,
S.\W.

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION,—Tlie annual meeting
will be held at Bolton, on Saturday, September 26th. Bells
ready from 2.30 p.m.—W. H. Shuker and J. H. Banks,
Hon. Secretaries.

CLEVELAND AND NORTH YORKSHIRE
ASSOCIATION.—Owing to the War the officials of this
Association announce that the meeting arranged for Sept.
26th, 1914, at Stoberley and Carlton will not be held, and
they believe that the members will approve of this.—T.
Metcalfe, Hon. Sec., 26, High Street, North Ormesby,
Middlesbrough.

LEEDS AND DISTRICT AMALGAMATED
SOCIETY.—The. monthly meeting of the above Society
will be held at St. Matthias Church, Burley, Leeds, on
Saturday, October 3rd, 1914. Bells available from 3 p.m.
Business meeting in schoolroom at 7.30 p.m.

LANCASHIRE ASSOCIATION.—Bolton Branch.-
The next meeting will be held at Westhoughton, on Satur-
day, October 10th, 1914. Bells available from 3 p.m.
Meeting 6.30.—G. Pincott, Branch Secretary.

KENT COUNTY ASSOCIATION.—Maidstone Dis-
trict.—The half-yearly meeting will be held at Bearsted,
on Saturday, October 10th. The tower will be open at 3
p.m. Service 5 p.m., followed by tea, to be kindly pro-
vided by the Vicar. All intending to attend should send
their names by October 3rd to the District Secretary, Rev.
K. A. Mumford, 22, Tonbridge Road, Maidstone.

THE LADIES' GUILD.—1I beg to remind members
that the annual subscription is now due.— Edith K. Parker,
Hon. Secretary, 97, Edenbridge Road, Bush Hill Park,
Enfield.

SHEFFIELD DISTRICT AND OLD EAST
DERBYSHIRE AMALGAMATED SOCIETY.—Will
members kindly note that as | have joined the Sheffield
City Battalion, | should be glad if they would for the
present communicate with the Assistant Honorary Secre-
tary, Mr. G. Hollis, 37, Reservoir Terrace, Chesterfield.—
J. E. L. Cockey, Honorary Secretary, 38, Rutland Park,
Sheffield.
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THE SOCIETY OF ROYAL CUMBERLAND
YOUTHS.—Ringing for Divine service at St. Martin’s-
in-the-Fields the first Sunday in the month, and at St.
Leonard’'s, Shoreditch, the third Sunday, both at
10 o’clock. Meetings for practice at Shoreditch the
second Thursday and at St. Sepulchre’s, Snow Hill, the
fourth Wednesday in every month, at 7.30.—H. J. Bradley,
Parish Church, Shoreditch.

PEAL BOOKS.—Price 3s., post free 3/6. Peals writ-
ten in at 3d. per page. Prices for entering peals in Asso-
ciation official peal books upon application.—-). Beams,
West Ewell, Epsom.

HOLIDAY APARTMENTS.

Having frequently had inquiries from ringers for inform-
ation as to other members of the Exercise who have holi-
day apartments to let, we offer the use of our columns to
those who cater for visitors at seaside and other resorts.
Terms for insertion will be sent on application.

VISITORS TO BRISTOL will find every convenience
and moderate charges at Mr. Ponton’s, Admiral Duncan,
Nicholas Street, Bristol. Headquarters of the Bristol
Ringers.

RINGERS and visitors to Matlock will find every com-
fort and convenience at Mrs. H. Paulson’s, Beech House,
Church Street (private house).

ARCHDEACONRY OF STAFFORD SOCIETY.

111 the quiet village of Slicnstone (near the Cathedral city of Lich-
field), the Society for the Archdeaconry of Stafford held its autumi
meeting on Saturday last, when many towers were represented—though
tho number of members who attended was not as great as might have
been hoped. However, those who were present had no need to regret
it, as a most enjoyable afternoon was spent. .

Ringing begun at 3 o'clock, and continued until 5.30. when a short
service was held in the church, at which tho Vicar (the Rev. E. Moiloy)
gave an interesting address.—At tho committee meeting, 16 members
were enrolled, and the next meeting fixed for tho second week in
January, «t, Coseley.—Tea. was served at tlie Fox and Hounds, when
upwards of 30 tat down.—Votes of thanks were afterwards accorded
the Vicar, organist, and choir boys—In response, tho Vicar expressed
the hope that ho might have tho pleasure of meeting the company
again ere long.—Train time arrived all too quickly, and necessitated a
rather hurried departure.

THE ANNUAL REPORT.

The 31st annual report of the society has just been placed in the
hands of the members, and is of a satisfactory” nature. One extremely
Interesting feature in its compilation is the particulars which arc given
a- o the steeples in the Archdeaconry. Ilu tile case of all towers con-
taining five or more bells, not only is the dedication, tho weight and
the practice night given when practicable, but also summarised parti-
culars of lho dates and founder* of all the bells, which makes a
very interesting historical record.

Tho committee's report records the fact that the past year has been,
in many respects, one of decided progress. Tlie society has enrolled
fifty-one new resident ringing members, eight non-rceident life mem-
b1 nnd throe honorary meinbers. Tho number of non-resident ring-
ing members, who igslude the Revs. W. V. Ghilwell and A. Partridge,
vicars of King's Bromley and Great Barr respectively, easily con-
stitutes a record—at any rate since 1888—the previous highest, being
32 in 1908-09. The number of towers, which include members belonging
to tho society is 31. an increase of four crver last year's number. Tlie
total membership now stands at 382.

The report calls attention to the decision to revert in future to the
arrangement of former years, and to again hold the annual meeting
in June. It also comments on the successful cycle runs which have
liotn arranged and held. 1l peal ringing several local bands had come
into prominence, notably among whom were Wood Green, with Sted-
man and_Erin Triples. Plain Bob, Kent- Treblo Bob, and Double Nor-
wich Major; All Saint’s, West Bromwich, Stedman Triples; St. Giles’,
Willenhall, GTandsire Triples; St. Editlia’s, Tamworth, Stedman
Triples; St. Peter’s, Wolveilianipton, Grandsire Caters and Cinques.
Oilier noteworthy performances were Bob Maximus and Double Nor-
wich Caters, at Wolverhampton; and Oxford Treble Bob Royal at
walsall. These latter peals were tho first rung for tlie society.

_ Tlie statement of accounts shows that the balance in hand had been
increased from £22 Is. 5d. in March, 1913, to .£28 15s. 6d. in June, 1914.
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Cleuxllins

CHURCH BELLS SINGLY OR
IN RINGS.

Bell Frames in Cast Iron, Steel
and Oak.

Bells tuhed on the latest irf?
proved principles initiated by
the late Canon Simpson.

CASTLE GREEN,
-—BRISTOL. —



184 THE RINGING WORLD September 25th, 1914..

Established 1820.

.JAMES BARV\ELL, JOHN PRITCHARD,

LIMITED . Church Bell Rope,
— anp — LOUGHBOROUGH.

C h u rch B e I H an g ers Maker of Ropes for the World’s Record Peal,.

NEW FLEXIBLE ENDS SPLICED TO OLD ROPES.

GREAT HAM PTON STREET, J. P. has had many years' experience in making Bell-

ropes, and makes them only of the best quality.

B I RM I NG HAM . PRICE LIST ON APPLICATION.
Towers and Campaniles Inspected and HARRY STOKES & SON’

Estimates Furnished to cover every Church Bell Hangers,
Expense. WOODBURY, R.S.O., DEVON,

Musical Handbells, in any size and number, RINGS OF BELLS, to any number, hung on tha
for Tune or Change-ringing, in Guaranteed most approved principles, and Bell Frames made and fixed
Quality. in Iron or in Oak.

The Ellacombe Chime Hammers Fixed.
Bell Ropes Supplied.

HARRY STOKES A SON, having had a considerable number of years' ex
perlence in Church Bell Hanging, with confidence solicit tbe patronage of the
1 Clergy, Churchwardens, and Ringers generally.
ALFRED BOWELL,

CHURCH BELL FOUNDER,
ipsW ieH -
THOMAS POBLE & SON, Church Bell-
Hangers, TAUNTON.—Bells Hung on the
L O U 6 H B O R U 6 H most apuroved principles, Old Bells Re cast,
Q . New Bells supplied, Ropes of the best make,
Ellacombe’s Chiming Apparatus fixed, Hand-
bells in sets, Chromatic or Diatonic-

lOEIGESTEFMSJIHIFE. THE BADGE OF THE CRAFT]
A Beautifully Executed

JOHN SMITH & SONS RINGERS' PENDANT

BElalaFOUNPERS

AND

B ElalaHi~"NGEK S,

Midland ~ Clock ~ Work™, in Gold, Silver or Bronze.
DERREREY Specially Suitable for Gifts.
telegraphic Address— Prices, Gold (9 carat) 21/-, Silver 4/6
"CRoekt, Derby." Bronze 2/6 (post free).

Y*L Mo. HS. .
% ' CH”\IA\/IEAéKEfRS S0|:P cILocCKshAdN? J COMBER, Goldsmith and Jeweller,
or S. aul’s athedral,
C Beverley  Mistr, * Sclby - Abbey TS Telephone = 171 Woking WOKING
W IV iX ' Cathedral, Thurles Cathedral, Trinity College, Can*
O if bridge, Belfast Assembly Hall, Magdalen College, Oxford, Printed for the Proprietors by the w oodbridge Prhss, Lid .,

and many others to Lord Orimthorpe’s designs. In 1897, writ- Y 7
ing to the Vicar of Minohinhampton, Lora Grimthorpe said :—" Smith Guildford, and Published by Messrs. wm, Dawson & Sons,

<f Derby will elook yon In the best way and as near eternity at possible." Ltd. Cannon House,Bream's Buildings, London, E.C



